
South Dakota State Board of Dentistry 

Board Meeting Agenda 

10:00 a.m. Central Friday January 13, 2023 

Drifters Event Center -- 325 E. Hustan Avenue Ft. Pierre SD 57532 

 

1) Call to Order       

2) Open Forum: 5 minutes for the public to address the Board 

3) Approval of Minutes:  October 21, 2022  

4) Adoption of Agenda 

5) Financial Report  

6) Office Update 

7) Organization and Program Updates 

a. Central Regional Dental Testing Services (CRDTS) 

b. SD Dental Association, Dental Wellness Program, Oral Health Coalition 

c. SD Dental Hygienists’ Association 

8) Executive Session - SDCL 1-25-2(3) and (4) 

9) License Applications  

10) Compliance/Legal  

11) New Business: 

a. FY 2024 Board Operations 

b. Retirement/Clinical Practice Template Agreement  

c. Draft Administrative Rules 

d. Speaker Honorarium Application  

e. Meeting Date(s)   

12) Announcements: Next Meetings – June 2, 2023, October 20, 2023. 

13) Adjourn   



 

 

SD State Board of Dentistry 

Board Meeting  

Drifters Event Center – Ft. Pierre, SD 

Friday October 21, 2022 10:00am Central 

 

President Renemans called the meeting to order at 10:03am Central. 

 

Board Members Present:  Dr. Nick Renemans, Dr. Scott Van Dam, Dr. Harold Doerr, Dr. Brian Prouty 

and Zona Hornstra. 

Board Members Present via Video/Audio Conferencing: Molly Fulton.   

Board Staff Present: Brittany Novotny, Shelly Munson, Nolan Welker and Lisa Harsma. 

 

Presenters attending via Video/Audio Conferencing: Marsha Jensen (Southeast Technical College), 

Chanin Hartnett (Western Dakota Tech), Dr. Mark Edwards (CRDTS), Dr. Mark Muncy (SRTA), 

Kimber Cobb (CDCA-WREB-CITA), Dr. Ben Wall (CDCA-WREB-CITA) and Maria Piacentino 

(Midwest Health Management Services/ HPAP). 

 

Others Present: Paul Knecht (SDDA), Dr. Denis Miller (Siouxland Oral Surgery), Dr. Ed Kusek 

(AAID), Tasha Wendel (SDDHA), Carolina Hernandez (AAID), Mike Mueller (DDSD) and Ann 

Schwartz (DDSD). 

 

Renemans called for public testimony during the open forum. Dr. Ed Kusek, Carolina Hernandez, and 

Dr. Denis Miller gave testimony regarding the draft specialty advertising administrative rules. 

 

Motion to approve the minutes by Doerr. Second by Hornstra. Motion carried. 

 

Motion to move approve the agenda by Hornstra. Second by Van Dam. Motion carried. 

 

Motion to approve the financial report by Fulton. Second by Doerr. Motion carried. 

 

Novotny provided an office update. 

 

Marcia Jensen presented an update on the Southeast Technical College Dental Assisting Program, 

noting that its application for accreditation was accepted by CODA and the program is now 

undergoing the CODA accreditation process.  

 

Motion to approve the Southeast Technical College dental assisting program per ARSD 20:43:08:05 

by Doerr. Second by Van Dam. Motion carried.   

 

Chanin Hartnett presented an update on the Western Dakota Tech Dental Assisting Program, noting 

that the program is now accredited by CODA. 

 

Kimber Cobb presented an update on the CDCA-WREB-CITA exam. 

 

Dr. Mark Edwards presented an update on the CRDTS exam. 

 

Dr. Marc Muncy presented an update on the SRTA exam. 



 

 

 

Motion to approve, per ARSD 20:43:03:01(4), the components of the patient and manikin based dental 

clinical competency examinations administered by CRDTS, SRTA and CDCA-WREB-CITA that meet 

the requirements outlined in 20:43:03:02, as presented, by Doerr. Second by Hornstra. Motion carried.    

 

Motion to approve, per ARSD 20:43:03:08(4), the components of the patient and manikin based dental 

hygiene clinical competency examinations administered by CRDTS, SRTA and CDCA-WREB-CITA 

that meet the requirements outlined in ARSD 20:43:03:09, as presented, by Hornstra. Second by Van 

Dam. Motion carried. 

 

Motion to approve, per 20:43:03:04(4), the patient and manikin based dental clinical competency 

examinations administered by CRDTS, SRTA and CDCA-WREB-CITA, as presented, by Prouty. 

Second by Doerr. Motion carried. 

 

Motion to approve, per 20:43:03:10(4), the patient and manikin based dental hygiene clinical 

competency examinations administered by CRDTS, SRTA and CDCA-WREB-CITA, as presented, by 

Hornstra. Second by Van Dan. Motion carried. 

 

Tasha Wendel presented an update on the South Dakota Dental Hygienists’ Association and University 

of South Dakota Department of Dental Hygiene. 

 

Paul Knecht presented an update on the South Dakota Dental Association, the Dental Wellness 

Program, and the Oral Health Coalition. 

 

Maria Piacentino presented an updated on the Health Professionals Assistance Program. 

 

Motion to move into Executive Session pursuant to SDCL 1-25-2 (3) and (4) by Hornstra. Second by 

Van Dam.    Motion carried. The Board went into Executive Session at 11:45am. 

 

Motion to move out of Executive Session by Hornstra. Second by Van Dam.  Motion carried.  The 

board moved out of Executive Session at 2:04pm.  

 

Motion to approve the dentist applications of MD Rezaul Islam Sarker, Joie Fan and Michael Paul 

Tewes by Doerr. Second by Van Dam. Motion carried. 

Motion to approve the dental hygienist applications of Shelby Lyn Arman, Thuc Dan Nguyen Bui, 

Autumn Elizabeth Gomez, Kirstin Marie Gortmaker, Megan Lynne Haggard, Regina Faith Kisely, 

Maria Carol Lipe, Denisa Mujic, Rozlynn Irene Murrow, and Haley Marie den Hoed by Hornstra. 

Second by Doerr. Motion carried. 

Motion to approve the dentist credential verification applications of Bianka Bidovska-Miller, Anthony 

David DelCorral, and Shaun Taylor O’Neill by Doerr. Second by Van Dam. Motion carried. 

Motion to approve the dental hygienist credential verification applications of Catherine Elaine Morgan 

and Sarah Ann Varney by Hornstra. Second by Prouty. Motion carried. 

Motion to approve the dental entity application of Joshua Brower DDS Prof. LLC by Doerr. Second by 

Van Dam. Motion carried. 

Motion to approve the CODA accredited General Practice Residency completed by Dr. Amrita Patel at 

Nassau University Medical Center as equivalent to a clinical competency examination per SDCL 36-



 

 

6A-47 by Doerr. Second by Hornstra. Motion carried. 

 

The Board and general counsel reviewed the draft specialty advertising administrative rules and 

stakeholder feedback that was received.  The Board directed that additional feedback be solicited on 

the current draft administrative rules for review at the January 2023 board meeting.  The stakeholder 

feedback portal and the draft administrative rules will be available on the Board’s website in advance 

of the January 2023 board meeting.   

The Board reviewed the draft speaker honorarium application.  Motion to approve the 2023 speaker 

honorarium application, as presented, by Hornstra. Second by Doerr. Motion carried.   

The Board reviewed the Advisory Opinions.  Motion to rescind the January 2017 Advisory Opinion 

regarding Continued Competency, the June 2017 Advisory Opinion regarding Dental Hygienists and 

Radiographs, and the October 2017 Advisory Opinion regarding Silver Diamine Fluoride by Doerr. 

Second by Van Dam. Motion carried. 

Motion to authorize collaborative supervision agreements to include the preventative application of 

Silver Diamine Fluoride and Nanosilver Fluoride by Hornstra. Second by Van Dam. Motion carried. 

Novotny provided an update on the draft Dental and Dental Hygiene Interstate Compact from the 

Council of State Governments. 

The Board announced meeting dates of January 13, 2023; June 2, 2023; and October 20, 2023. 

Motion to adjourn by Fulton. Second by Hornstra. Motion carried. 

 

There being no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 2:45 pm. 

 

 

______________________________ 

Zona Hornstra, Secretary 













First Name Middle Name Last Name

William Harold Blauer

Paul Lee Hung
Todd Clark Martin

First Name Middle Name Last Name

Katelyn Joy Friedt

Rhonda Jo Griffith

Karmen Lynn Massey
Brittany Ann Williams

First Name Middle Name Last Name

Tessa Lee Adams

Kaylee Ann Beaver
Linda J Hollibaugh

Dentist Credential

Hygienist New

Hygienist Credential



 1 

SOUTH DAKOTA DEPARTMENT OF HEALTH  

 

BOARD OF DENTISTRY  

 

 

IN THE MATTER OF  

 

Dr. XXXXX  

 

 

) 

) 

) 

) 

) 

 

 

 

AGREEMENT AND ORDER 

 

 Dr. XXXX, is an individual who holds a license in good standing to practice 

dentistry in the state of South Dakota, XXXX (license number). SDCL 36-6A-52 

requires annual renewal of a license by July 1, including the licensee’s provision of 

information as required by the South Dakota State Board of Dentistry (Board).  

 Dr. XXX has requested to relinquish his/her clinical privileges due to 

retirement.  Dr. XXX hereby agrees to voluntarily refrain from the clinical practice 

of dentistry in the state of South Dakota.  In recognition of Dr. XXX completing 

his/her dental career in good standing and retiring from the clinical practice of 

dentistry, the parties are entering into this Agreement and Order (Agreement).   

 Dr. XX agrees to the following terms: 

1. Dr. XX is eligible for this agreement one time during his or her career. 

 

2. This Agreement will be in effect from the date of execution until July 1, 

XXXX (3 years) or upon non-renewal of the license, whichever occurs 

earlier.   

 

3. Dr. XX will not engage in the clinical practice of dentistry or provide direct 

patient clinical care in South Dakota during the term of this Agreement. 

 

4. Dr. XX will relinquish all permits that fall under the jurisdiction of the 

Board effective the date this Agreement is executed.  

 



 2 

5. During the term of this Agreement, Dr. XX is exempt from continuing 

education and maintenance of cardiopulmonary resuscitation 

requirements, but must annually renew his/her license, pay all required 

fees, and comply with all other requirements for the maintenance and 

renewal of his/her license as required by law.   

 

6. If Dr. XX would like to resume clinical practice in South Dakota during 

the term of this Agreement, he/she must submit written notification to the 

Board and must, before resuming clinical practice, obtain approval by the 

Board. The Board may require completion of continuing education, clinical 

and/or didactic testing, or other conditions before authorizing Dr. XXX to 

resume clinical practice. Dr. XX is responsible for all costs associated with 

any such requirements. 

 

7. The license of Dr. XX will not be renewed after July 1, XXXX and will 

automatically suspend.  If Dr. XXX would like to obtain a license after 

that date, he/she will need to apply for a license and complete all 

requirements for licensure as required by law.   

 

 For purposes of this Agreement, Dr. XX is not prohibited from practicing non-

clinical dentistry, as recognized by the American Dental Association. 

Dr. XX has been given an opportunity to discuss this Agreement with an 

attorney and is aware of his/her right to notice, hearing, and appeal in any 

contested case matter. Dr. XX hereby voluntarily waives all such rights to counsel, 

notice, hearing, and appeal which may exist in this matter, as provided in SDCL ch. 

1-26 and SDCL ch. 36-6A.  

This Agreement constitutes informal disposition pursuant to SDCL 1-26-20 

and is a public record of the Board and state of South Dakota. This Agreement is 

not a disciplinary action and will not be reported to the National Practitioner 

Databank. This Agreement does not preclude the Board from taking disciplinary 

action if Dr. XX fails to satisfactorily meet the conditions set forth in this 



 3 

Agreement or engages in unprofessional conduct as defined in the Dental Practice 

Act (SDCL ch. 36-6A). 

In the event the Board does not approve this Agreement and Order, any 

argument is waived that the Board members considering this Agreement should be 

disqualified from later rendering a decision in any subsequent contested case 

hearing regarding this pending action. 

 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT 

Dr. XXX, by his/her signature acknowledges that he/she has had an 

opportunity to consult with legal counsel of his/her choice, and he/she states that 

he/she understands the terms of this Agreement, and knowingly, intelligently, and 

voluntarily enters into the same.   

 

 Dated this    day of _________________________, XXX.  

 

     

     ___________________________________ 

     Dr. XXXXX       

     Licensee 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 4 

ORDER 

 

 NOW THEREFORE, the South Dakota Board of Dentistry having been 

provided with the above Agreement regarding Dr. XXX, and the Board of Dentistry 

finding good cause for accepting the above Agreement; it is 

 ORDERED, that the Board of Dentistry accepts the Agreement and therefore 

the foregoing Agreement is entered into, and shall be effective from the date signed 

below by the President of the South Dakota State Board of Dentistry.  

  Dated this ____ day of ____________________, ____. 

    SOUTH DAKOTA BOARD OF DENTISTRY 

 

       By:  _________________________________ 

     Dr. XXXX, President  

 

 

  



Page 1 of 16 
 

ADVERTISING 1 

CHAPTER 20:43:04 2 

AUTHORIZED PRACTICE 3 

20:43:04:01        Recognized Representation of specialty practice and advertising—4 

Qualifications. 5 

20:43:04:02        Repealed. 6 

20:43:04:03        Inspections for safety and sanitation. 7 

20:43:04:04        Dental hygienist -- Practice -- Supervision. 8 

20:43:04:05        Transferred. 9 

20:43:04:05.01   Transferred. 10 

20:43:04:06        Additional duties of dental hygienist. 11 

20:43:04:07        Mobile office or unit--Authority to operate. 12 

20:43:04:08        Transferred. 13 

20:43:04:09        Transferred. 14 

20:43:04:10        Transferred. 15 

20:43:04:11        Transferred 16 

20:43:04:12        Transferred. 17 

          20:43:04:01.  Recognized Representation of specialty practice and advertising -18 

-  Qualifications.  19 

(1) Dentists A dentist may advertise services in recognized specialty areas or advertise 20 

specialty practices if they have advertise or represent oneself as a “specialist” or use the terms 21 

“specializes,” “specializing,” or another variation of the term, for any specialty in which the dentist 22 

has completed a post-doctoral program consisting of at least two full-time years and the post-23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:01
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:02
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:03
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:04
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:05
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:05.01
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:06
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:07
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:08
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:09
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:10
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:11
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:04:12


Page 2 of 16 
 

doctoral program is accredited by an accreditation agency recognized by the United States 1 

Department of Education or the post-doctoral program is administered by a dental school 2 

accredited by an organization recognized by the United State Department of Education.  A dentist 3 

who advertises or represents oneself as a “specialist” or uses the terms “specializes,” 4 

“specializing,” or another variation of the term must devote a sufficient portion of his or her 5 

practice to the announced specialty to maintain expertise in that specialty; postdoctoral training 6 

which is recognized and approved by the American Dental Association Commission on Dental 7 

Accreditation. Only the following specialties are recognized by the Board of Dentistry: 8 

          (1)  Dental public health; 9 

          (2)  Endodontics; 10 

          (3)  Oral and maxillofacial pathology; 11 

          (4)  Oral and maxillofacial radiology 12 

          (5)  Oral and maxillofacial surgery; 13 

          (6)  Orthodontics and dentofacial orthopedics; 14 

          (7)  Pediatric dentistry; 15 

          (8)  Periodontics; and 16 

          (9)  Prosthodontics. 17 

          Dentists that meet the qualifications of this section must disclose in all advertisements the 18 

specialty area in which they practice. Dentists that do not meet the qualifications of this section 19 

must disclose in all advertisements that they are a general dentist. This disclaimer shall be clearly 20 

legible with print equal to or larger than the print advertising the service or clearly audible with 21 

speech volume and pace equal to the advertisement. 22 



Page 3 of 16 
 

          This section does not apply to those dentists who began limiting their practices to a 1 

recognized specialty prior to April 20, 1972. Declaration to the public of a specialty practice or the 2 

inference of specialty status in any other area is a violation of SDCL 36-6A-29 and this section. 3 

(2)     A dentist who advertises or represents oneself as a “specialist” or uses another 4 

variation of the term, such as “specializes” or “specializing,” must avoid any implication that 5 

another dentist associated with the same practice or entity is a specialist, unless that dentist also 6 

meets the requirements of this section; 7 

(3)     Declaration to the public of a specialty practice or the inference of specialty status 8 

outside of this section is unprofessional conduct as defined in § 36-6A-59.1(13); 9 

(4)     Any dentist may announce an “emphasis” in any area of dental practice without 10 

violating this section;      11 

(5)     The Board may require a dentist to substantiate the truthfulness of any assertion or 12 

representation of material fact set forth in an advertisement. At the time an advertisement is placed, 13 

the dentist must possess and rely upon information which, when produced, would substantiate the 14 

truthfulness of any assertion, omission, or representation of material fact set forth in the 15 

advertisement.  The failure to possess and rely upon the information required at the time the 16 

advertisement is placed is unprofessional conduct as defined in § 36-6A-59.1(13).  The failure or 17 

refusal to provide to the Board the factual substantiation to support a representation or assertion 18 

when requested by the Board is unprofessional conduct as defined in § 36-6A-59.1(13) and 19 

grounds for disciplinary action as defined in § 36-1C-3;   20 

(6)     Each dentist who is a director, manager, partner, shareholder, contracted employee 21 

or licensed professional employee, acting as an agent of the entity identified in an advertisement, 22 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-29


Page 4 of 16 
 

is jointly and severally responsible for the form and content of any advertisement offering services 1 

or materials; and 2 

(7)     A recording of every advertisement communicated by electronic media and a copy 3 

of every advertisement communicated by print media indicating the date and place of the 4 

advertisement must be retained by the dentist for a period of one year and be made available for 5 

review upon request by the board or its designee. 6 

          Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 6 SDR 87, effective March 2, 1980; 11 SDR 73, effective 7 

November 27, 1984; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 18 SDR 132, effective 8 

February 17, 1992; 37 SDR 131, effective January 6, 2011. 9 

          General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(1)(20), 36-6A-28, 37-6A-29. 10 

          Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(1)(22), 36-6A-59.1(13).  11 

CLINICAL EXAMINATION - SIMULATION 12 

        20:43:03:01.  Application for license to practice as a dentist -- Requirements. An 13 

applicant for a license to practice as a dentist shall submit to the board the following: 14 

          (1)  A completed application form and a fee of $150; 15 

          (2)  Certified transcripts or, when approved, a certified letter from a dental school official 16 

verifying that the applicant has graduated from a United States dental school accredited by the 17 

American Dental Association Commission on Dental Accreditation, having obtained a doctor of 18 

dental medicine or a doctor of dental surgery degree; 19 

          (3)  Verification of passage of the National Board Dental Examination Parts I and II or the 20 

Integrated National Board Dental Examination administered by the Joint Commission on National 21 

Dental Examinations; 22 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-28
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14


Page 5 of 16 
 

          (4)  Verification of passage of a board approved patient-based or an equivalent simulation 1 

or manikin-based clinical competency psychomotor examination that meets the criteria outlined in 2 

§ 20:43:03:02 within the five years preceding application or, if the clinical competency 3 

examination was passed prior to July 1, 2018, and within the five years preceding application, 4 

verification of passage of the Central Regional Dental Testing Service examination or Western 5 

Regional Examining Board examination. An applicant who fails any combination of board 6 

approved clinical competency examinations three times is not eligible for licensure in this state; 7 

          (5)  A certified letter verifying Verification of the license number and status of the license 8 

from the board of dentistry in each state in which the applicant is or has been licensed, if applicable; 9 

          (6)  A copy of the applicant's birth certificate or equivalent documentation; 10 

          (7)  A recent photograph; 11 

          (8)  A copy of the applicant's current cardiopulmonary resuscitation card. The board accepts 12 

only the American Heart Association for the Healthcare Provider, the American Red Cross for the 13 

Professional Rescuer, or an equivalent program approved by the board; and 14 

          (9)  Completed fingerprint cards necessary to conduct a state and federal criminal 15 

background check. 16 

          An applicant for a license to practice as a dentist shall pass a written examination 17 

administered by the board on the relevant administrative rules and statutes. A cut score of 70 18 

percent is considered passing. 19 

          To be considered, a complete application and all supporting documentation must be received 20 

at least 30 days before the board meeting. If requested, an applicant shall appear for a personal 21 

interview conducted by the board on a date set by the board. 22 



Page 6 of 16 
 

          Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 6 SDR 87, effective March 2, 1980; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, 1 

effective July 1, 1986; 18 SDR 132, effective February 17, 1992; 20 SDR 166, effective April 11, 2 

1994; 26 SDR 37, effective September 20, 1999; 27 SDR 57, effective December 12, 2000; 38 3 

SDR 172, effective April 25, 2012; 45 SDR 35, effective September 19, 2018; 46 SDR 75, 4 

effective December 4, 2019; 47 SDR 11, effective August 12, 2020. 5 

          General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(20). 6 

          Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(3), 36-6A-44. 7 

          20:43:03:02.  Application for license to practice as a dentist -- Clinical competency 8 

examination. The board may approve a patient-based or an equivalent simulation or manikin-9 

based clinical competency psychomotor examination pursuant to subdivision 20:43:03:01(4) that 10 

demonstrates evidence of psychometric soundness, including documentation of validity, 11 

reliability, fidelity and fairness, allows direct observation by a board designee, and includes, at a 12 

minimum, the following components: 13 

          (1)  A patient-based or an equivalent simulation or manikin-based periodontal component; 14 

          (2)  A patient-based or an equivalent simulation or manikin-based restorative component; 15 

          (3)  A simulation or manikin-based prosthodontic component; 16 

          (4)  A simulation or manikin-based endodontic component; and 17 

          (5)  A remediation policy to address candidate deficiencies.  18 

          During and within 180 days following a declared state of emergency pursuant to SDCL 34-19 

48A-5 that hinders the operations of and access to approved clinical competency examinations, 20 

the board may approve verification of clinical competency from a dental school accredited by the 21 

American Dental Association Commission on Dental Accreditation or other board approved  entity 22 

in lieu of the component required in subdivision (1). 23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-44
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=34-48A-5
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=34-48A-5


Page 7 of 16 
 

          Source: 45 SDR 35, effective September 19, 2018; 46 SDR 75, effective December 4, 2019; 1 

47 SDR 11, effective August 12, 2020. 2 

          General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(20). 3 

          Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(3), 36-6A-44(4). 4 

   20:43:03:04.  Application for license to practice as a dentist -- Credential verification. 5 

An applicant for a license to practice as a dentist by credential verification shall submit the 6 

following: 7 

          (1)  A completed application form and fee of $500; 8 

          (2)  A statement from a licensed doctor of medicine, doctor of osteopathic medicine, 9 

physician assistant, or certified nurse practitioner attesting to the applicant's physical and mental 10 

condition; 11 

          (3)  Verification of passage of the National Board Dental Examination Parts I and II or the 12 

Integrated National Board Dental Examination administered by the Joint Commission on National 13 

Dental Examinations; 14 

          (4)  Verification of passage of a patient-based or an equivalent simulation or manikin-based 15 

clinical competency psychomotor examination that has been approved by the board or passage of 16 

a state examination or examinations that the board considers equivalent; 17 

          (5)  A certified letter verifying Verification of the license number and status of the license 18 

from the board of dentistry in each state in which the applicant is or has been licensed; 19 

          (6)  Certified transcripts or, when approved, a certified letter from a dental school official 20 

verifying that the applicant has graduated from a United States dental school accredited by the 21 

American Dental Association Commission on Dental Accreditation, having obtained a doctor of 22 

dental medicine or a doctor of dental surgery degree; 23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-44


Page 8 of 16 
 

          (7)  A copy of the applicant's birth certificate or equivalent documentation; 1 

          (8)  A copy of the applicant's current cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card. The board 2 

accepts only the American Heart Association for the Healthcare Provider, the American Red Cross 3 

for the Professional Rescuer, or an equivalent program approved by the board; 4 

          (9)  A recent photograph; and 5 

          (10)  Completed fingerprint cards necessary to conduct a state and federal criminal 6 

background check. 7 

          An applicant for a license to practice as a dentist shall pass a written examination 8 

administered by the board on the relevant administrative rules and statutes. A cut score of 70 9 

percent is considered passing. 10 

          To be considered, a complete application and all supporting documentation must be received 11 

at least 30 days before the board meeting. If requested, an applicant for licensure by credential 12 

verification shall appear for a personal interview conducted by the board on a date set by the board. 13 

          Source: SL 1975, ch 16, § 1; 6 SDR 87, effective March 2, 1980; 8 SDR 95, effective 14 

February 15, 1982; 12 SDR 151, 12 SDR 155, effective July 1, 1986; 19 SDR 32, effective 15 

September 6, 1992; 26 SDR 37, effective September 20, 1999; 38 SDR 172, effective April 25, 16 

2012; 45 SDR 35, effective September 19, 2018; 47 SDR 11, effective August 12, 2020. 17 

          General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(20), 36-6A-47, 36-6A-50(18). 18 

          Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(3), 36-6A-47, 36-6A-50(18). 19 

    20:43:03:08.  Application for license to practice as a dental hygienist -- Requirements. An 20 

applicant for a license to practice as a dental hygienist shall submit the following: 21 

            (1)  A completed application form and a fee of $100; 22 



Page 9 of 16 
 

            (2)  Certified transcripts or, when approved, a certified letter from a dental hygiene school 1 

official verifying that the applicant has graduated from a United States dental hygiene program 2 

accredited by the American Dental Association Commission on Dental Accreditation, having 3 

obtained a dental hygiene degree; 4 

            (3)  Verification of passage of the National Board Dental Hygiene Examination; 5 

            (4)  Verification of passage of a board approved patient-based or an equivalent simulation 6 

or manikin-based clinical competency psychomotor examination that meets the criteria outlined in 7 

§ 20:43:03:09 within the five years preceding application or, if the clinical competency 8 

examination was passed prior to July 1, 2018, and within the five years preceding application, 9 

verification of passage of the Central Regional Dental Testing Service examination or Western 10 

Regional Examining Board examination. An applicant who fails any combination of board 11 

approved clinical competency examinations three times is not eligible for licensure in South 12 

Dakota; 13 

            (5)  A certified letter verifying Verification of the license number and status of the license 14 

from the board of dentistry in each state in which the applicant is or has been licensed, if applicable; 15 

            (6)  A copy of the applicant's birth certificate or equivalent documentation; 16 

            (7)  A recent photograph; and 17 

            (8)  A copy of the applicant's current cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card. The board 18 

accepts only the American Heart Association for the Healthcare Provider, the American Red Cross 19 

for the Professional Rescuer, or an equivalent program approved by the board. 20 

            An applicant for a license to practice as a dental hygienist shall pass a written examination 21 

administered by the board on the relevant administrative rules and statutes. A cut score of 70 22 

percent is considered passing. 23 



Page 10 of 16 
 

            To be considered, a complete application and all supporting documentation must be 1 

received at least 30 days before the board meeting. If requested, an applicant shall appear for a 2 

personal interview conducted by the board on a date set by the board.  3 

            Source: 45 SDR 35, effective September 19, 2018; 47 SDR 11, effective August 12, 2020. 4 

            General Authority: 36-6A-14(3)(20), 36-6A-44.2, 36-6A-50(14). 5 

            Law Implemented: 36-6A-14(3), 36-6A-44.2. 6 

      20:43:03:10.  Application for license to practice as a dental hygienist -- Credential 7 

verification. An applicant for a license to practice as a dental hygienist by credential verification 8 

shall submit the following: 9 

            (1)  A completed application form and fee of $200; 10 

            (2)  A statement from a licensed doctor of medicine, doctor of osteopathic medicine, 11 

physician assistant, or certified nurse practitioner attesting to the applicant's physical and mental 12 

condition; 13 

            (3)  Verification of passage of the National Board Dental Hygiene Examination; 14 

            (4)  Verification of passage of a patient-based or an equivalent simulation or manikin-based 15 

clinical competency psychomotor examination that has been approved by the board or passage of 16 

a state examination or examinations that the board considers equivalent; 17 

            (5)  A certified letter verifying Verification of the license number and status of the license 18 

from the board of dentistry in each state in which the applicant is or has been licensed; 19 

            (6)  Certified transcripts or, when approved, a certified letter from a dental hygiene school 20 

official verifying that the applicant has graduated from a United States dental hygiene school 21 

accredited by the American Dental Association Commission on Dental Accreditation, having 22 

obtained a dental hygiene degree; 23 



Page 11 of 16 
 

            (7)  A copy of the applicant's birth certificate or equivalent documentation; 1 

            (8)  A copy of the applicant's current cardiopulmonary resuscitation (CPR) card. The board 2 

accepts only the American Heart Association for the Healthcare Provider, the American Red Cross 3 

for the Professional Rescuer, or an equivalent program approved by the board; and 4 

            (9)  A recent photograph. 5 

            An applicant for a license to practice as a dental hygienist shall pass a written examination 6 

administered by the board on the relevant administrative rules and statutes. A cut score of 70 7 

percent is considered passing. 8 

            To be considered, a complete application and all supporting documentation must be 9 

received at least 30 days before the board meeting. If requested, an applicant shall appear for a 10 

personal interview conducted by the board on a date set by the board. 11 

            Source: 45 SDR 35, effective September 19, 2018; 47 SDR 11, effective August 12, 2020. 12 

            General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(20), 36-6A-47.1, 36-6A-50(18). 13 

            Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(3), 36-6A-47.1, 36-6A-50(18). 14 

            20:43:03:09.  Application for license to practice as a dental hygienist -- Clinical 15 

competency examination. The board may approve a patient-based or an equivalent simulation or 16 

manikin-based dental hygiene clinical competency psychomotor examination pursuant to 17 

subdivision 20:43:03:08(4) that demonstrates evidence of psychometric soundness, including 18 

documentation of validity, reliability, fidelity and fairness, allows direct observation by a board 19 

designee, and includes, at a minimum, the following components: 20 

            (1)  Pocket depth detection; 21 

            (2)  Calculus detection and removal; 22 

            (3)  An intra oral and extra oral assessment; and 23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-47.1
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-50
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-47.1
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-50


Page 12 of 16 
 

            (4)  A remediation policy to address candidate deficiencies. 1 

            During and within 180 days following a declared state of emergency pursuant to SDCL 34-2 

48A-5 that hinders the operations of and access to approved clinical competency examinations, 3 

the board may approve verification of clinical competency from a dental hygiene school accredited 4 

by the American Dental Association Commission on Dental Accreditation or other board approved 5 

entity in lieu of an examination otherwise required in this section. 6 

            Source: 45 SDR 35, effective September 19, 2018; 46 SDR 75, effective December 4, 7 

2019; 47 SDR 11, effective August 12, 2020. 8 

            General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(20), 36-6A-44.2. 9 

            Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(3), 36-6A-44.2(4). 10 

NITROUS OXIDE SEDATION AND ANALGESIA: 11 

20:43:09:06.  Nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia permit requirements -- Dental 12 

hygienists and registered dental assistants. The board may issue a permit to a dental hygienist 13 

or a registered dental assistant to administer nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia to dental patients 14 

on an outpatient basis under the direct supervision of a dentist if the dental hygienist or registered 15 

dental assistant: 16 

    (1)  Is certified in administering basic life support by the American Heart Association for the 17 

Healthcare Provider, the American Red Cross for the Professional Rescuer, or an equivalent 18 

program approved by the board; and 19 

    (2)  Has successfully completed a board approved educational course that substantially meets 20 

the objectives and content as described in Part 4 of the Guidelines for Teaching Pain Control and 21 

Sedation to Dentists and Dental Students and either: 22 

        (A)  Completed the course within 13 months before application for a permit; or 23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=34-48A-5
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=34-48A-5
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-44.2
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-44.2
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules?Rule=20:43:09:06


Page 13 of 16 
 

        (B)  Completed the course more than 13 months before application, has legally administered 1 

nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia for a period of time during the three years preceding 2 

application, and provides written documentation from a dentist that has employed or supervised 3 

the applicant, attesting to the current clinical proficiency of the applicant to administer nitrous 4 

oxide sedation and analgesia. 5 

A dental hygienist or registered dental assistant with a permit to administer nitrous oxide 6 

sedation and analgesia may administer nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia to dental patients under 7 

the direct supervision of a dentist.   8 

A dental hygienist with a permit to administer nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia may 9 

administer nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia to dental patients 18 years and older under the 10 

general supervision of a dentist if the supervising dentist has authorized such and authorization is 11 

included in the patient's record.   If there has been a relevant change in the patient's medical history 12 

since the authorization, the dental hygienist must consult with the dentist before administering 13 

nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia.  The supervising dentist shall ensure a written emergency 14 

response protocol is in place for patients receiving nitrous oxide sedation and analgesia by the 15 

dental hygienist under general supervision. 16 

A dental hygienist or registered dental assistant that administers nitrous oxide sedation and 17 

analgesia must use equipment with fail-safe features, a 30-percent-minimum oxygen flow, and a 18 

scavenger system. 19 

    Source: 19 SDR 32, effective September 6, 1992; 32 SDR 188, effective May 15, 2006; 37 20 

SDR 131, effective January 6, 2011; 42 SDR 19, effective August 17, 2015; 42 SDR 83, effective 21 

December 3, 2015; 48 SDR 62, effective December 13, 2021. 22 

    General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(20).  23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes?Statute=36-6A-14


Page 14 of 16 
 

    Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(1)(3)(7)(10)(13)(14)(22), 36-6A-40. 1 

    Reference: "Guidelines for Teaching Pain Control and Sedation to Dentists and Dental 2 

Students," 2016 Edition, American Dental Association. Copies may be obtained from the 3 

American Dental Association at www.ada.org free of charge. 4 

LOCAL ANESTHESIA 5 

          20:43:09:06.01.  Local anesthesia permit requirements -- Dental hygienists. The board 6 

may issue a permit to a dental hygienist to administer local anesthesia to dental patients on an 7 

outpatient basis under the direct supervision of a dentist if the dental hygienist has met the 8 

following requirements: 9 

          (1)  Is certified in administering basic life support by the American Heart Association for 10 

the Healthcare Provider, the American Red Cross for the Professional Rescuer, or an equivalent 11 

program approved by the board; and 12 

          (2)  Has successfully completed a board approved educational course on local anesthesia 13 

from an accredited dental or dental hygiene school and either: 14 

               (a)  Completed the course within thirteen months prior to application; or 15 

               (b)  Completed the course more than thirteen months prior to application, has legally 16 

administered local anesthesia for a period of time during the three years preceding application, and 17 

provides written documentation from a dentist that has employed or supervised the applicant, 18 

attesting to the current clinical proficiency of the applicant to administer local anesthesia. 19 

 A dental hygienist with a permit to administer local anesthesia may administer local 20 

anesthesia to dental patients under the direct supervision of a dentist.    21 

A dental hygienist with a permit to administer local anesthesia may administer local 22 

anesthesia to dental patients 18 years and older under the general supervision of a dentist if the 23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes?Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/Statutes?Statute=36-6A-40


Page 15 of 16 
 

supervising dentist has authorized such and authorization is included in the patient's record.   If 1 

there has been a relevant change in the patient's medical history since the authorization, the dental 2 

hygienist must consult with the dentist before administering local anesthesia.  The supervising 3 

dentist shall ensure a written emergency response protocol is in place for patients receiving local 4 

anesthesia by the dental hygienist under general supervision.  5 

          Source: 37 SDR 131, effective January 6, 2011; 42 SDR 83, effective December 3, 2015. 6 

          General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-14(1)(3)(7)(10)(13)(14). 7 

          Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-14(1)(3)(7)(10)(13)(14)(22), 36-6A-40. 8 

COLLABORATIVE SUPERVISION - REPORTING 9 

CHAPTER 20:43:10  10 

COLLABORATIVE SUPERVISION 11 

Section 12 

20:43:10:01        Practice settings. 13 

20:43:10:02        Qualifications. 14 

20:43:10:03        Application for registration. 15 

20:43:10:04        Collaborative agreement. 16 

20:43:10:05        Reporting requirements Repealed. 17 

20:43:10:06        Termination of agreement. 18 

 20:43:10:05.  Reporting requirements. Each dental hygienist who has rendered services 19 

under collaborative supervision must complete a summary report and submit the information to 20 

the board at the completion of a program or, in the case of an ongoing program, annually.Repealed. 21 

 Source: 38 SDR 172, effective April 25, 2012. 22 

 General Authority: SDCL 36-6A-40.2. 23 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-14
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-40
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:10:01
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:10:02
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:10:03
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:10:04
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:10:05
https://sdlegislature.gov/Rules/Administrative/DisplayRule.aspx?Rule=20:43:10:06
https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-40.2


Page 16 of 16 
 

 Law Implemented: SDCL 36-6A-40.2. 1 

https://sdlegislature.gov/statutes/DisplayStatute.aspx?Type=Statute&Statute=36-6A-40.2










 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

Application for Continuing Education Course Honorarium 
 

 
Background 
 

It is the policy of the Board to allocate resources, when available, to fund continuing education 
courses that further the mission of the Board. 
 
 

Procedure 
 

Application Deadline:  December 13, 2022.   
Applications received after this deadline will not be considered. 

 

Submit Applications to: South Dakota State Board of Dentistry 
    PO Box 1079 
    Pierre, SD 57501 
    Or electronically to contactus@sdboardofdentistry.com   
 

Fund Amount:   The Board will fund up to $7,500 in total during this request cycle. 
 
 

Criteria for Consideration 

✓ The sponsor organization must meet the applicable state contractor requirements. 

✓ The course must further the mission of the Board. 

✓ Preference will be given to courses that impact a large number of licensees or registrants 

and courses provided in partnership with other professional associations. 

✓ Any funded course must be open to all dental professionals free of charge. 

 

If an application is approved: 

✓ The sponsor organization must be prepared to complete the state contract process. 

✓ The sponsor organization must note in its promotional materials the following: “The 

honorarium for this speaker is being funded by the South Dakota State Board of 

Dentistry.  This course is open to all dental professionals free of charge.  The content 

and opinions expressed during this course do not necessarily reflect the views of nor are 

they endorsed by the South Dakota State Board of Dentistry.”   

✓ Following the course date, the sponsor organization must submit a brief report, including 

how many South Dakota licensees and/or registrants attended. 

South Dakota State Board of Dentistry 
P.O. Box 1079, 1351 N. Harrison Ave.   Pierre, SD 57501-1079 

Ph: 605-224-1282 Fax: 1-888-425-3032 
 

 

E-mail: contactus@sdboardofdentistry.com www.sdboardofdentistry.org 

 

mailto:jennifer@pefgovs.org
mailto:contactus@sdboardofdentistry.com
http://www.sdboardofdentistry.org/











